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 1                                   1:02 o'clock p.m.


                                     May 21, 2021


 2                        -  -  -


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  It's 1:01


 4   on May 21st, 2021.  I'll call this meeting of the


 5   Indiana Civil Rights Commission to order.  Having


 6   established our quorum, so if you'd like, can you


 7   announce the agenda?


 8               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yep.  So, we have first


 9   the approval of the previous meeting minutes; the


10   ICRC Director's Report; under Old Business, we


11   have two appeals appointed to Commissioners to be


12   reviewed; under New Business, we have two new


13   appeals to be assigned to Commissioners; as far


14   as the Review of ALJ Decisions and Orders, we


15   have three today for consideration; and then one


16   ALJ decision that's been automatically confirmed;


17   and then under our last item, we have a brief


18   summary from myself regarding a recent decision


19   pertaining to a Civil Rights -- or Indiana Civil


20   Rights Commission administrative order that was


21   reviewed by the Indiana Court of Appeals.


22          Chair Slash, I cannot hear you.  I don't


23   know if anybody else can.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I had to hit the


 2   mute button.  Thank you.


 3          At this time, we'll call for a motion to


 4   approve the previous meeting's minutes.


 5               COMM. RAMOS:  So moved --


 6               COMM. BLACKBURN:  So moved.


 7               COMM. RAMOS:  -- Comm. Ramos.


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  So,


 9   we can take Comm. Blackburn as the motion and


10   Vice-Chair Ramos as the second, if that works for


11   everyone.


12               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes.


13               COMM. RAMOS:  That's fine.


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  All right.  Shall


15   we call the roll?


16               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?


17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, here.


18               MR. SCHULTZ:  Is than an affirmative


19   vote to adopt the minutes?


20               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Oh, I thought you


21   was calling the roll.  So sorry.  That is yes.


22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Thank you.


23          Comm. Harrington?
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  You're on mute.


 2               COMM. HARRINGTON:  I'm sorry; I've


 3   got two mute buttons.  Aye.


 4               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson's not


 5   here.


 6          Comm. Tolliver?


 7               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Approved.


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Vice-Chair Ramos?


 9               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.


10               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


12               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, 5-0.


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


14          At this time, we will hear from the staff


15   on the ICRC Director's Report.  Commissioners,


16   this was e-mailed out this morning.  Hopefully


17   you have had a chance to at least open it by now.


18               MR. SCHULTZ:  Well, good afternoon to


19   everybody.  It's always a pleasure to see you,


20   and I hope everybody gets a chance to enjoy the


21   weather this weekend.


22          As far as the Director's Monthly Report, I


23   think there's actually quite a few number --
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 1   quite a few things that I'd like to highlight.


 2   First of all, our ADR or mediation metrics, we


 3   are really doing very, very well as far as


 4   resolving our cases informally, and to give some


 5   perspective, at this point last year, we had


 6   reported approximately $75,000 in monetary


 7   settlement.


 8          This month -- or as of April, we were at


 9   $265,000 in monetary settlements as far as


10   settlements we've formalized here at the agency.


11   So, that's a huge increase, and I always like to


12   make sure I give credit to our mediators, who


13   work very, very hard, as all of our staff does,


14   of course.


15          The number of overall closures for the


16   agency has increased over 25 percent from the


17   same time last year, so we are really focusing on


18   trying to get cases moving along and closed in a


19   timely manner.


20          In that same -- on those same lines, the


21   number of aged fair housing cases is currently at


22   four percent.  It was at 22 percent this time


23   last year, so really been focused on fair
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 1   housing.  Of course, last month was Fair Housing


 2   Month, and I just want to make sure that you know


 3   that those investigators just continue to do


 4   really great work.  I wanted to highlight that.


 5          And public accommodations, another area of


 6   enforcement for us, our aged cases have gone from


 7   29 percent a year ago to 12 percent.  So, that's


 8   just something we really continue to focus on


 9   with our team, making sure we're getting, you


10   know, timely investigations done.


11          And, you know, some areas -- some things


12   that we've done to try to really help give them


13   the tools, the investigators the tools, is we've


14   adopted a new subpoena policy that really helps


15   the investigators when they're dealing with


16   parties that are maybe not very forthcoming with


17   information.  And that's just something we've


18   given them so that they -- that they're allowed


19   to do under the law, but it's not a tool that


20   we've used very much in the past.  We're working


21   on a new default policy.  Again, the idea, we


22   don't want cases just sitting out there, we want


23   to get them closed.
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 1          And we're actually getting ready to roll


 2   out a new standardized question -- I guess policy


 3   you can call it, where we're going to be able to


 4   get some questions to the complainants a little


 5   bit faster, and hopefully we can get that


 6   information from them when it's a little more


 7   fresh in their minds.  And we're really excited


 8   about all of that, and I think it's just going to


 9   allow our investigators to continue to keep


10   moving these cases along.


11          And one other thing, I mean, of course,


12   you know, I'm General Counsel, so I've got to


13   look at legal, too, and I am happy to say that


14   we've gone from the average age of a case from


15   the time of the notice of finding in legal, our


16   litigation team, from 804 days two months ago to


17   650 days.  Obviously we'd always like it to go


18   lower, but I think that's just great, great work


19   from the legal team.


20          And I also want to give Christiana some


21   credit there, because she's also made sure that


22   some of our databases are up to date, and I'm


23   sure that's helped with our numbers as well.
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 1          So, those are a couple of the things I


 2   really wanted to highlight for the Commission


 3   today.  Any questions for me?


 4               COMM. BLACKBURN:  All good news.


 5               COMM. RAMOS:  I do have a question.


 6   Great job, I agree with Comm. Blackburn, but I


 7   notice there was a huge drop in Facebook, a lot


 8   of hits and clicks on that.  Was there a reason


 9   why there was such a significant drop from March


10   to April?


11               MR. SCHULTZ:  I can follow up with


12   our External Affairs team and see if we can't


13   give you an answer.  I'm afraid I don't know the


14   answer to that, but we can certainly follow up


15   with you, Vice-Chair Ramos.


16               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I know there was


18   a lot last month because of Fair Housing Month,


19   so I wonder how much of that ties into the change


20   into this month, so I would be intrigued to hear


21   that as well.


22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Okay.  And if there's


23   one thing I'm not qualified to speak about, it's
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 1   social media, so I think I will defer to those


 2   with more knowledge than myself.


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 4          Are there any other questions?


 5                     (No response.)


 6               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Hearing


 7   none, thank you, and all good news.  Thank you so


 8   much for sharing that, specifically the change in


 9   the amount of time the cases are taking to move


10   through, so it's all good stuff.


11          Okay.  At this time, we'll go through Old


12   Business.  We had two cases that were assigned


13   last month.  The first one was Hoff versus


14   Chrysler (FCA US LLC), Case No. EMha19120634.


15          Comm. Harrington?


16               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Yes.  My


17   recommendation regarding this appeal is to refer


18   for further investigation, and I will specify in


19   writing the investigator -- excuse me -- the


20   investigation efforts desired.


21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


22          And with it being referred back for


23   clarity, do we need to take a vote on that?
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 1               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yes, a vote to --


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


 3               MR. SCHULTZ:  -- a motion to affirm


 4   that recommendation.


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.


 6          Is there a motion to affirm?


 7               COMM. RAMOS:  So moved.


 8               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I so move.


 9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  We'll


10   take the motion by Vice-Chair Ramos and the


11   second, Comm. Blackburn, since we're on


12   perfect -- right on time with each other today.


13          Okay.  And we can call a roll on the vote


14   on that.


15               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?


16               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes.


17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?


18               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.


19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?


20               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.


21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?


22               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.


23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


 2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, 5-0.


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 4          And the next case, Russell versus Hyatt


 5   Regency Indianapolis, Case No. PAra20040171.


 6          Comm. Tolliver?


 7               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Good afternoon.  I


 8   reviewed the case, and the Commission found there


 9   was no probable cause to believe that an unlawful


10   discriminatory practice occurred in this


11   instance, and I recommend that we affirm the


12   original no-cause finding.


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


14          Is there a motion?


15               COMM. RAMOS:  So moved.


16               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I move.


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  This is --


18   we're having a great virtual meeting here.  So,


19   we will go with Vice-Chair Ramos with the motion


20   and Comm. Blackburn with the second.


21          Okay.  Can you call the roll?


22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?


23               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Aye, Blackburn.
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 1               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?


 2               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.


 3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?


 4               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.


 5               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?


 6               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.


 7               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


 9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, 5-0.


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I'm going to try


11   to do the New Business a little according to


12   memory in the past couple of months.  I will


13   assign the first case, Mayers versus Marion


14   Superior Court, EMra19120129, to Vice-Chair


15   Ramos.


16               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  And the second


18   case, Strachan v. St. Joseph County Public


19   Library, Case PAha21030072, to myself.  I think


20   that way we've made it through all of us in the


21   past couple of months.


22          Okay.  So, moving on to the Administrative


23   Law Judge's Orders disposing of the proceedings,
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 1   the first one is ICRC versus Herman Kittle


 2   Properties, Case HOha20060205.  On this one, the


 3   ALJ dismissed the Indiana Fair Housing Act claim


 4   based on a Notice of Election, and the objection


 5   period in this matter has closed.


 6          Is there a -- is there a motion to affirm


 7   this?


 8               COMM. HARRINGTON:  This is


 9   Comm. Harrington.  I move that we affirm the


10   ALJ's decision to dismiss.


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


12          Is there a second?


13               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn seconds.


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


15          We shall call the roll.


16               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?


17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes.


18               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?


19               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.


20               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?


21               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.


22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?


23               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.
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 1               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


 3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, 5-0.


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 5          And the next case, ICRC versus Varin/River


 6   Pointe, LLC, Case HOha15100734.  This was


 7   submitted to the Commission on April 15th, 2021.


 8   The ALJ conducted a hearing on the merits and


 9   dismissed the matter.  Complainant -- the


10   Complainant has filed objections and has


11   requested the Commission to set a briefing


12   deadline as well as schedule an oral argument.


13          We have officially reached this wonderful


14   time of the year where holidays kind of jumble up


15   dates and times, but with this one, I would like


16   to propose that we schedule -- that we make the


17   briefing deadline 30 days from today and oral


18   argument for our following meeting, so that would


19   be 30 days from today for the briefing, and the


20   following meeting would be our July Commission


21   meeting for oral arguments.


22          Is there any interest in a motion on that?


23               COMM. HARRINGTON:  This is
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 1   Comm. Harrington.  I move that we grant the


 2   request of the Complainant, with the time line


 3   you identified, with 30 days for the briefing and


 4   60 days for the argument, so for June and July.


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 6          Is there a second?


 7               COMM. RAMOS:  Second, Ramos.


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 9          Shall we call the roll?


10               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yes.  And if I may, I'm


11   going to restate the motion as I understood it.


12   The motion --


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


14               MR. SCHULTZ:  -- is to set a briefing


15   deadline for objection briefs 30 days from today,


16   with oral arguments scheduled for the July 2021


17   meeting; is that correct?


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  That is correct.


19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?


20               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, no.


21               MR. SCHULTZ:  I'm sorry,


22   Comm. Blackburn; you cut out.


23               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, no.
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 1               MR. SCHULTZ:  I have a no; is that


 2   correct?


 3               COMM. BLACKBURN:  That is correct.


 4               MR. SCHULTZ:  Thank you.


 5          Comm. Harrington?


 6               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.


 7               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?


 8               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.


 9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?


10               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.


11               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.


13               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, 4 to 1.


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.


15          The next one, ICRC versus Woodlands


16   Winding Brook Homeowners Association,


17   HOha20060202, submitted to the Commission on


18   May 6th, 2021.  The ALJ dismissed the Indiana


19   Fair Housing Act claim based on Notice of


20   Election.  The objection period closes on


21   May 21st, therefore, it's not quite over yet,


22   today is the day, so there's no action required


23   on this one.  We will take this matter up next
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 1   month.


 2          Okay.  So, we have one case today that the


 3   AL -- that was an ALJ decision that was


 4   automatically confirmed, and that case was


 5   Lisbeth Mora versus Lee's Nails & Spa, ICRC


 6   Case EMno19040225.  Is there any comment or


 7   anything to share with the Commissioners on this


 8   one, Deputy Director Schultz?


 9               MR. SCHULTZ:  No additional


10   information to share at this time, no.


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.


12   And that one, once again, was automatically


13   confirmed.


14          So, with that being said, our next meeting


15   dates do tend to be the ones that are fairly


16   important for us to look at, and now that we have


17   set an oral argument for the July meeting, we do


18   likely need to have discussion, specifically on


19   the next two months' dates, to make sure that we


20   have a full Commission available.  Are there any


21   issues, concerns with either the June 18th date


22   or the July 16th date?


23               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I will not -- July.
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 1               THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry; I'm not


 2   hearing that clearly.


 3               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I will not be


 4   available July.


 5               THE REPORTER:  Thank you.


 6               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


 7               COMM. RAMOS:  I also had a conflict


 8   on June 18th.


 9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


10          You are muted, Comm. Harrington.


11               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Thank you.  I'm


12   sorry; I have a new speaker.  Just for


13   information, for the July meeting, that is the


14   week of Indiana Black Expo celebration.  Their


15   full schedule is not out, but typically we have a


16   conflict, so we may just want to monitor the


17   schedule, because we may have some conflicts in


18   June.


19               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.


20          So, at this time, it sounds like we may be


21   okay with June, but we need to revisit July at


22   the June meeting.  Okay.  Thank you.  We'll pay


23   very close attention to attendance and try to
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 1   schedule as quickly as possible for the public to


 2   know.


 3          Okay.  And then under our next section,


 4   Election/Training and Other, the Cause Data


 5   Analysis, Deputy Director Schultz, would you like


 6   to speak to that briefly, since we were not all


 7   on the call prior to the start of the meeting?


 8               MR. SCHULTZ:  Sure.  As far as the


 9   Cause Data Analysis that Vice-Chair Ramos had


10   requested, I'm still working on that project.  I


11   don't have any better excuse other than I just


12   haven't finished it.  I do apologize, but I do


13   intend to have it done for the next meeting.


14               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  And then Deputy


16   Director Schultz, would you like to speak to the


17   case that we have listed here?


18               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yes.  So, I do have to


19   keep my comments fairly brief regarding the


20   summary of this case.  This is a decision that


21   was handed down by the Indiana Court of Appeals,


22   but in my role as the General Counsel for the


23   agency, anything I say on the record could be
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 1   construed as official legal interpretation.  So,


 2   I will happily talk to any of the Commissioners


 3   one on one if they have additional questions, but


 4   I will keep my summary fairly brief today.


 5          This is a case that came before the


 6   Commission.  Specifically, Belterra Casino hired


 7   the Complainant, a Chinese national, as a guest


 8   room attendant.  The Complainant injured her back


 9   and was placed on medical restrictions that could


10   not be accommodated in her current position.


11          Belterra gave Dusan a list -- or the


12   Complainant a list of positions, told her to work


13   with Human Resources if she had any questions,


14   and informed her that her employment would be


15   terminated if she did not find a new position


16   within 30 days.  Dusan -- or the Complainant did


17   not apply for any positions, stopped going to


18   work, and was terminated.


19          Complainant filed a complaint with the


20   Indiana Civil Rights Commission alleging that


21   Belterra had discriminated against her based on


22   national origin and disability.


23          After an administrative hearing, an ALJ
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 1   dismissed Complainant's national origin claim but


 2   ruled in favor of -- on her disability claim,


 3   including that Belterra discriminated against her


 4   by failing to provide her with a reasonable


 5   accommodation for her disability.


 6          The ALJ awarded the Complainant


 7   approximately $76,000 in back pay.  The


 8   Commission subsequently affirmed and adopted the


 9   ALJ's order in its -- I'm sorry -- the ALJ's


10   final order.


11          Belterra appealed to the Indiana Court of


12   Appeals, arguing that the Commission applied an


13   incorrect burden of proof, erred in finding that


14   the Complainant could perform the essential


15   functions of a barista with or without an


16   accommodation, and erred in finding that


17   extending Complainant's restriction period was a


18   reasonable accommodation.


19          Belterra contended that the Commission


20   incorrectly applied the burden of proof by


21   suggesting possible accommodations, which


22   Complainant never asserted for the first time --


23   or made these suggestions for the first time in
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 1   the ALJ order, and then holding Belterra


 2   responsible for failure to disprove the


 3   reasonableness of the accommodations.


 4          The Court of Appeals agreed, and held that


 5   the burden shifting test in Conclusion 36 of the


 6   order to be based on a truncated and incomplete


 7   quotation from the case relied on by the ALJ.


 8          Therefore, the Court held that the


 9   Complainant failed to meet the threshold burden


10   of proving the existence of a reasonable


11   accommodation, and the burden of production never


12   shifted to Belterra, and it was not obligated to


13   introduce evidence regarding the availability of


14   the accommodation.


15          In short, the -- this is a case in which


16   the Commission ultimately determined that the


17   individual was discriminated against based on the


18   disability.  On a review by the Indiana


19   Supreme -- or I'm sorry -- Court of Appeals, that


20   determination was reversed.  The Commission did


21   petition to transfer the case to the Indiana


22   Supreme Court, which ultimately denied the


23   request.
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 1          That's -- again, I understand if there are


 2   additional questions, but that's probably -- as


 3   far as being in a public meeting, that's probably


 4   the most I should discuss today.


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  And


 6   thank you for, you know, as far as you were able


 7   to go.


 8          And I hope, Commissioners, if you have any


 9   questions, that you will take Deputy Director


10   Schultz up on his offer and arrange a time for a


11   conversation and an opportunity to answer your


12   questions.  Thank you.


13          At this time, are there any announcements?


14                     (No response.)


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Actually,


16   if you don't mind, I'd like to go back one step.


17   This would be the appropriate place for me to ask


18   for this.  We were not able to conclude our


19   orientation session last month, and we did have


20   to rush through some of our things.  I would like


21   to ask if there would be any support for us


22   having an orien -- a brief orientation session


23   following the June meeting, just to make sure
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 1   that we can get through all of the things that we


 2   had on our plate for training.  Would there be


 3   any objection or any support to that,


 4   Commissioners?


 5               COMM. TOLLIVER:  That would be fine


 6   with me.


 7               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I don't have any


 8   objection, except I think we should consider that


 9   Comm. Ramos already has said that he can't be


10   here.  Comm. Harrington has said June and July


11   are in somewhat iffy situations with regards to


12   what's happening locally in other spheres.  So,


13   maybe it could be put out to August.  I -- just a


14   suggestion.


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.


16   That's a very good point.  We didn't have all of


17   us last month either, and so, perhaps we can just


18   put together an orientation document that we can


19   potentially have as a part of our materials prior


20   to our coming months, just to make sure we all


21   have our hands on things.  Okay.


22               COMM. BLACKBURN:  That's good.


23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
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 1          Now I'll go back to announcements.  Does


 2   anyone have any announcements?


 3               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I'd like to


 4   announce that the Walter and Alpha Blackburn


 5   Scholarship Fund event will occur live the 11th


 6   at the Arts Garden, and I am shamelessly


 7   announcing that anyone interested in supporting


 8   the Scholarship, which goes to students in


 9   architecture or the arts, to reach out to me or


10   on-line and let me know.  I'd appreciate it.


11   Thank you.


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


13               THE REPORTER:  Comm. Blackburn, what


14   was the date of that?


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Are there any


16   other announcements?


17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  July 11th, at the


18   Arts Garden.


19               THE REPORTER:  Thank you.


20               COMM. HARRINGTON:  This is


21   Comm. Harrington.  I will be sending you guys a


22   communication.  The airport has launched an


23   equity insights fireside chat series that will be
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 1   virtual.  Our next event is going to be


 2   June 16th, corresponding with Pride Month.  We


 3   have the Mayor of Long Beach, who is Dr. Robert


 4   Garcia, is going to have a chat with myself and


 5   Mario Rodriguez.


 6          His diverse background is he's probably


 7   the youngest Mayor of Long Beach.  He's openly a


 8   member of the LGBT community, and we just think


 9   it would be very appropriate, as he will appeal


10   to what we call the Emerging Leaders Group and


11   our LGBT community, as well as to our Hispanic


12   and Latinx community.


13          So, we're very excited that he's agreed to


14   have this conversation, and our hope is that by


15   sharing inspirational stories, he can motivate us


16   to learn how to respect one another and work on


17   it together and be more focused.  But I'll send


18   the e-mail to each of you, and share it with the


19   Indiana Civil Rights Commission as well.


20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.


21          Are there any additional announcements?


22                     (No response.)


23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Hearing
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 1   none, is there any public comment at this time?
 2               MR. SCHULTZ:  This is Deputy Director
 3   Schultz.  I'm not aware of any public comment.
 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.
 5          At this time, I thank you all for joining
 6   us on this lovely afternoon in May, but we will
 7   go ahead and adjourn our meeting.  It's 1:30 p.m.
 8   on May 21st, 2021.
 9                        -  -  -
               Thereupon, the proceedings of
10              May 21, 2021 were concluded
                    at 1:31 o'clock p.m.
11                        -  -  -
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
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 1                      CERTIFICATE


 2          I, Lindy L. Meyer, Jr., the undersigned


 3   Court Reporter and Notary Public residing in the


 4   City of Shelbyville, Shelby County, Indiana, do


 5   hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and


 6   correct transcript of the proceedings taken by me


 7   on Friday, May 21, 2021 in this matter and


 8   transcribed by me.


 9


10                        _________________________
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 1                                  1:02 o'clock p.m.
                                    May 21, 2021
 2                       -  -  -
 3              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  It's 1:01
 4  on May 21st, 2021.  I'll call this meeting of the
 5  Indiana Civil Rights Commission to order.  Having
 6  established our quorum, so if you'd like, can you
 7  announce the agenda?
 8              MR. SCHULTZ: Yep.  So, we have first
 9  the approval of the previous meeting minutes; the
10  ICRC Director's Report; under Old Business, we
11  have two appeals appointed to Commissioners to be
12  reviewed; under New Business, we have two new
13  appeals to be assigned to Commissioners; as far
14  as the Review of ALJ Decisions and Orders, we
15  have three today for consideration; and then one
16  ALJ decision that's been automatically confirmed;
17  and then under our last item, we have a brief
18  summary from myself regarding a recent decision
19  pertaining to a Civil Rights -- or Indiana Civil
20  Rights Commission administrative order that was
21  reviewed by the Indiana Court of Appeals.
22         Chair Slash, I cannot hear you.  I don't
23  know if anybody else can.
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 1              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: I had to hit the
 2  mute button.  Thank you.
 3         At this time, we'll call for a motion to
 4  approve the previous meeting's minutes.
 5              COMM. RAMOS: So moved --
 6              COMM. BLACKBURN: So moved.
 7              COMM. RAMOS: -- Comm. Ramos.
 8              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.  So,
 9  we can take Comm. Blackburn as the motion and
10  Vice-Chair Ramos as the second, if that works for
11  everyone.
12              COMM. BLACKBURN: Yes.
13              COMM. RAMOS: That's fine.
14              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: All right.  Shall
15  we call the roll?
16              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Blackburn?
17              COMM. BLACKBURN: Blackburn, here.
18              MR. SCHULTZ: Is than an affirmative
19  vote to adopt the minutes?
20              COMM. BLACKBURN: Oh, I thought you
21  was calling the roll.  So sorry.  That is yes.
22              MR. SCHULTZ: Thank you.
23         Comm. Harrington?
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 1              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: You're on mute.
 2              COMM. HARRINGTON: I'm sorry; I've
 3  got two mute buttons.  Aye.
 4              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Jackson's not
 5  here.
 6         Comm. Tolliver?
 7              COMM. TOLLIVER: Approved.
 8              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Vice-Chair Ramos?
 9              COMM. RAMOS: Aye.
10              MR. SCHULTZ: Chair Slash?
11              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
12              MR. SCHULTZ: Motion passes, 5-0.
13              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
14         At this time, we will hear from the staff
15  on the ICRC Director's Report.  Commissioners,
16  this was e-mailed out this morning.  Hopefully
17  you have had a chance to at least open it by now.
18              MR. SCHULTZ: Well, good afternoon to
19  everybody.  It's always a pleasure to see you,
20  and I hope everybody gets a chance to enjoy the
21  weather this weekend.
22         As far as the Director's Monthly Report, I
23  think there's actually quite a few number --
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 1  quite a few things that I'd like to highlight.
 2  First of all, our ADR or mediation metrics, we
 3  are really doing very, very well as far as
 4  resolving our cases informally, and to give some
 5  perspective, at this point last year, we had
 6  reported approximately $75,000 in monetary
 7  settlement.
 8         This month -- or as of April, we were at
 9  $265,000 in monetary settlements as far as
10  settlements we've formalized here at the agency.
11  So, that's a huge increase, and I always like to
12  make sure I give credit to our mediators, who
13  work very, very hard, as all of our staff does,
14  of course.
15         The number of overall closures for the
16  agency has increased over 25 percent from the
17  same time last year, so we are really focusing on
18  trying to get cases moving along and closed in a
19  timely manner.
20         In that same -- on those same lines, the
21  number of aged fair housing cases is currently at
22  four percent.  It was at 22 percent this time
23  last year, so really been focused on fair
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 1  housing.  Of course, last month was Fair Housing
 2  Month, and I just want to make sure that you know
 3  that those investigators just continue to do
 4  really great work.  I wanted to highlight that.
 5         And public accommodations, another area of
 6  enforcement for us, our aged cases have gone from
 7  29 percent a year ago to 12 percent.  So, that's
 8  just something we really continue to focus on
 9  with our team, making sure we're getting, you
10  know, timely investigations done.
11         And, you know, some areas -- some things
12  that we've done to try to really help give them
13  the tools, the investigators the tools, is we've
14  adopted a new subpoena policy that really helps
15  the investigators when they're dealing with
16  parties that are maybe not very forthcoming with
17  information.  And that's just something we've
18  given them so that they -- that they're allowed
19  to do under the law, but it's not a tool that
20  we've used very much in the past.  We're working
21  on a new default policy.  Again, the idea, we
22  don't want cases just sitting out there, we want
23  to get them closed.
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 1         And we're actually getting ready to roll
 2  out a new standardized question -- I guess policy
 3  you can call it, where we're going to be able to
 4  get some questions to the complainants a little
 5  bit faster, and hopefully we can get that
 6  information from them when it's a little more
 7  fresh in their minds.  And we're really excited
 8  about all of that, and I think it's just going to
 9  allow our investigators to continue to keep
10  moving these cases along.
11         And one other thing, I mean, of course,
12  you know, I'm General Counsel, so I've got to
13  look at legal, too, and I am happy to say that
14  we've gone from the average age of a case from
15  the time of the notice of finding in legal, our
16  litigation team, from 804 days two months ago to
17  650 days.  Obviously we'd always like it to go
18  lower, but I think that's just great, great work
19  from the legal team.
20         And I also want to give Christiana some
21  credit there, because she's also made sure that
22  some of our databases are up to date, and I'm
23  sure that's helped with our numbers as well.
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 1         So, those are a couple of the things I
 2  really wanted to highlight for the Commission
 3  today.  Any questions for me?
 4              COMM. BLACKBURN: All good news.
 5              COMM. RAMOS: I do have a question.
 6  Great job, I agree with Comm. Blackburn, but I
 7  notice there was a huge drop in Facebook, a lot
 8  of hits and clicks on that.  Was there a reason
 9  why there was such a significant drop from March
10  to April?
11              MR. SCHULTZ: I can follow up with
12  our External Affairs team and see if we can't
13  give you an answer.  I'm afraid I don't know the
14  answer to that, but we can certainly follow up
15  with you, Vice-Chair Ramos.
16              COMM. RAMOS: Thank you.
17              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: I know there was
18  a lot last month because of Fair Housing Month,
19  so I wonder how much of that ties into the change
20  into this month, so I would be intrigued to hear
21  that as well.
22              MR. SCHULTZ: Okay.  And if there's
23  one thing I'm not qualified to speak about, it's
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 1  social media, so I think I will defer to those
 2  with more knowledge than myself.
 3              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 4         Are there any other questions?
 5                    (No response.)
 6              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Hearing
 7  none, thank you, and all good news.  Thank you so
 8  much for sharing that, specifically the change in
 9  the amount of time the cases are taking to move
10  through, so it's all good stuff.
11         Okay.  At this time, we'll go through Old
12  Business.  We had two cases that were assigned
13  last month.  The first one was Hoff versus
14  Chrysler (FCA US LLC), Case No. EMha19120634.
15         Comm. Harrington?
16              COMM. HARRINGTON: Yes.  My
17  recommendation regarding this appeal is to refer
18  for further investigation, and I will specify in
19  writing the investigator -- excuse me -- the
20  investigation efforts desired.
21              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
22         And with it being referred back for
23  clarity, do we need to take a vote on that?
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 1              MR. SCHULTZ: Yes, a vote to --
 2              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
 3              MR. SCHULTZ: -- a motion to affirm
 4  that recommendation.
 5              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Thank you.
 6         Is there a motion to affirm?
 7              COMM. RAMOS: So moved.
 8              COMM. BLACKBURN: I so move.
 9              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.  We'll
10  take the motion by Vice-Chair Ramos and the
11  second, Comm. Blackburn, since we're on
12  perfect -- right on time with each other today.
13         Okay.  And we can call a roll on the vote
14  on that.
15              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Blackburn?
16              COMM. BLACKBURN: Yes.
17              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Harrington?
18              COMM. HARRINGTON: Aye.
19              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Tolliver?
20              COMM. TOLLIVER: Aye.
21              MR. SCHULTZ: Vice-Chair Ramos?
22              COMM. RAMOS: Aye.
23              MR. SCHULTZ: Chair Slash?
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 1              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
 2              MR. SCHULTZ: Motion passes, 5-0.
 3              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 4         And the next case, Russell versus Hyatt
 5  Regency Indianapolis, Case No. PAra20040171.
 6         Comm. Tolliver?
 7              COMM. TOLLIVER: Good afternoon.  I
 8  reviewed the case, and the Commission found there
 9  was no probable cause to believe that an unlawful
10  discriminatory practice occurred in this
11  instance, and I recommend that we affirm the
12  original no-cause finding.
13              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
14         Is there a motion?
15              COMM. RAMOS: So moved.
16              COMM. BLACKBURN: I move.
17              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  This is --
18  we're having a great virtual meeting here.  So,
19  we will go with Vice-Chair Ramos with the motion
20  and Comm. Blackburn with the second.
21         Okay.  Can you call the roll?
22              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Blackburn?
23              COMM. BLACKBURN: Aye, Blackburn.
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 1              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Harrington?
 2              COMM. HARRINGTON: Aye.
 3              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Tolliver?
 4              COMM. TOLLIVER: Aye.
 5              MR. SCHULTZ: Vice-Chair Ramos?
 6              COMM. RAMOS: Aye.
 7              MR. SCHULTZ: Chair Slash?
 8              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
 9              MR. SCHULTZ: Motion passes, 5-0.
10              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: I'm going to try
11  to do the New Business a little according to
12  memory in the past couple of months.  I will
13  assign the first case, Mayers versus Marion
14  Superior Court, EMra19120129, to Vice-Chair
15  Ramos.
16              COMM. RAMOS: Thank you.
17              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: And the second
18  case, Strachan v. St. Joseph County Public
19  Library, Case PAha21030072, to myself.  I think
20  that way we've made it through all of us in the
21  past couple of months.
22         Okay.  So, moving on to the Administrative
23  Law Judge's Orders disposing of the proceedings,
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 1  the first one is ICRC versus Herman Kittle
 2  Properties, Case HOha20060205.  On this one, the
 3  ALJ dismissed the Indiana Fair Housing Act claim
 4  based on a Notice of Election, and the objection
 5  period in this matter has closed.
 6         Is there a -- is there a motion to affirm
 7  this?
 8              COMM. HARRINGTON: This is
 9  Comm. Harrington.  I move that we affirm the
10  ALJ's decision to dismiss.
11              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
12         Is there a second?
13              COMM. BLACKBURN: Blackburn seconds.
14              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
15         We shall call the roll.
16              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Blackburn?
17              COMM. BLACKBURN: Yes.
18              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Harrington?
19              COMM. HARRINGTON: Aye.
20              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Tolliver?
21              COMM. TOLLIVER: Aye.
22              MR. SCHULTZ: Vice-Chair Ramos?
23              COMM. RAMOS: Aye.
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 1              MR. SCHULTZ: Chair Slash?
 2              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
 3              MR. SCHULTZ: Motion passes, 5-0.
 4              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 5         And the next case, ICRC versus Varin/River
 6  Pointe, LLC, Case HOha15100734.  This was
 7  submitted to the Commission on April 15th, 2021.
 8  The ALJ conducted a hearing on the merits and
 9  dismissed the matter.  Complainant -- the
10  Complainant has filed objections and has
11  requested the Commission to set a briefing
12  deadline as well as schedule an oral argument.
13         We have officially reached this wonderful
14  time of the year where holidays kind of jumble up
15  dates and times, but with this one, I would like
16  to propose that we schedule -- that we make the
17  briefing deadline 30 days from today and oral
18  argument for our following meeting, so that would
19  be 30 days from today for the briefing, and the
20  following meeting would be our July Commission
21  meeting for oral arguments.
22         Is there any interest in a motion on that?
23              COMM. HARRINGTON: This is
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 1  Comm. Harrington.  I move that we grant the
 2  request of the Complainant, with the time line
 3  you identified, with 30 days for the briefing and
 4  60 days for the argument, so for June and July.
 5              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 6         Is there a second?
 7              COMM. RAMOS: Second, Ramos.
 8              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 9         Shall we call the roll?
10              MR. SCHULTZ: Yes.  And if I may, I'm
11  going to restate the motion as I understood it.
12  The motion --
13              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
14              MR. SCHULTZ: -- is to set a briefing
15  deadline for objection briefs 30 days from today,
16  with oral arguments scheduled for the July 2021
17  meeting; is that correct?
18              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: That is correct.
19              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Blackburn?
20              COMM. BLACKBURN: Blackburn, no.
21              MR. SCHULTZ: I'm sorry,
22  Comm. Blackburn; you cut out.
23              COMM. BLACKBURN: Blackburn, no.
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 1              MR. SCHULTZ: I have a no; is that
 2  correct?
 3              COMM. BLACKBURN: That is correct.
 4              MR. SCHULTZ: Thank you.
 5         Comm. Harrington?
 6              COMM. HARRINGTON: Aye.
 7              MR. SCHULTZ: Comm. Tolliver?
 8              COMM. TOLLIVER: Aye.
 9              MR. SCHULTZ: Vice-Chair Ramos?
10              COMM. RAMOS: Aye.
11              MR. SCHULTZ: Chair Slash?
12              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Aye.
13              MR. SCHULTZ: Motion passes, 4 to 1.
14              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Thank you.
15         The next one, ICRC versus Woodlands
16  Winding Brook Homeowners Association,
17  HOha20060202, submitted to the Commission on
18  May 6th, 2021.  The ALJ dismissed the Indiana
19  Fair Housing Act claim based on Notice of
20  Election.  The objection period closes on
21  May 21st, therefore, it's not quite over yet,
22  today is the day, so there's no action required
23  on this one.  We will take this matter up next
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 1  month.
 2         Okay.  So, we have one case today that the
 3  AL -- that was an ALJ decision that was
 4  automatically confirmed, and that case was
 5  Lisbeth Mora versus Lee's Nails & Spa, ICRC
 6  Case EMno19040225.  Is there any comment or
 7  anything to share with the Commissioners on this
 8  one, Deputy Director Schultz?
 9              MR. SCHULTZ: No additional
10  information to share at this time, no.
11              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Thank you.
12  And that one, once again, was automatically
13  confirmed.
14         So, with that being said, our next meeting
15  dates do tend to be the ones that are fairly
16  important for us to look at, and now that we have
17  set an oral argument for the July meeting, we do
18  likely need to have discussion, specifically on
19  the next two months' dates, to make sure that we
20  have a full Commission available.  Are there any
21  issues, concerns with either the June 18th date
22  or the July 16th date?
23              COMM. BLACKBURN: I will not -- July.
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 1              THE REPORTER: I'm sorry; I'm not
 2  hearing that clearly.
 3              COMM. BLACKBURN: I will not be
 4  available July.
 5              THE REPORTER: Thank you.
 6              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
 7              COMM. RAMOS: I also had a conflict
 8  on June 18th.
 9              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
10         You are muted, Comm. Harrington.
11              COMM. HARRINGTON: Thank you.  I'm
12  sorry; I have a new speaker.  Just for
13  information, for the July meeting, that is the
14  week of Indiana Black Expo celebration.  Their
15  full schedule is not out, but typically we have a
16  conflict, so we may just want to monitor the
17  schedule, because we may have some conflicts in
18  June.
19              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.
20         So, at this time, it sounds like we may be
21  okay with June, but we need to revisit July at
22  the June meeting.  Okay.  Thank you.  We'll pay
23  very close attention to attendance and try to
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 1  schedule as quickly as possible for the public to
 2  know.
 3         Okay.  And then under our next section,
 4  Election/Training and Other, the Cause Data
 5  Analysis, Deputy Director Schultz, would you like
 6  to speak to that briefly, since we were not all
 7  on the call prior to the start of the meeting?
 8              MR. SCHULTZ: Sure.  As far as the
 9  Cause Data Analysis that Vice-Chair Ramos had
10  requested, I'm still working on that project.  I
11  don't have any better excuse other than I just
12  haven't finished it.  I do apologize, but I do
13  intend to have it done for the next meeting.
14              COMM. RAMOS: Thank you.
15              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: And then Deputy
16  Director Schultz, would you like to speak to the
17  case that we have listed here?
18              MR. SCHULTZ: Yes.  So, I do have to
19  keep my comments fairly brief regarding the
20  summary of this case.  This is a decision that
21  was handed down by the Indiana Court of Appeals,
22  but in my role as the General Counsel for the
23  agency, anything I say on the record could be
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 1  construed as official legal interpretation.  So,
 2  I will happily talk to any of the Commissioners
 3  one on one if they have additional questions, but
 4  I will keep my summary fairly brief today.
 5         This is a case that came before the
 6  Commission.  Specifically, Belterra Casino hired
 7  the Complainant, a Chinese national, as a guest
 8  room attendant.  The Complainant injured her back
 9  and was placed on medical restrictions that could
10  not be accommodated in her current position.
11         Belterra gave Dusan a list -- or the
12  Complainant a list of positions, told her to work
13  with Human Resources if she had any questions,
14  and informed her that her employment would be
15  terminated if she did not find a new position
16  within 30 days.  Dusan -- or the Complainant did
17  not apply for any positions, stopped going to
18  work, and was terminated.
19         Complainant filed a complaint with the
20  Indiana Civil Rights Commission alleging that
21  Belterra had discriminated against her based on
22  national origin and disability.
23         After an administrative hearing, an ALJ
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 1  dismissed Complainant's national origin claim but
 2  ruled in favor of -- on her disability claim,
 3  including that Belterra discriminated against her
 4  by failing to provide her with a reasonable
 5  accommodation for her disability.
 6         The ALJ awarded the Complainant
 7  approximately $76,000 in back pay.  The
 8  Commission subsequently affirmed and adopted the
 9  ALJ's order in its -- I'm sorry -- the ALJ's
10  final order.
11         Belterra appealed to the Indiana Court of
12  Appeals, arguing that the Commission applied an
13  incorrect burden of proof, erred in finding that
14  the Complainant could perform the essential
15  functions of a barista with or without an
16  accommodation, and erred in finding that
17  extending Complainant's restriction period was a
18  reasonable accommodation.
19         Belterra contended that the Commission
20  incorrectly applied the burden of proof by
21  suggesting possible accommodations, which
22  Complainant never asserted for the first time --
23  or made these suggestions for the first time in
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 1  the ALJ order, and then holding Belterra
 2  responsible for failure to disprove the
 3  reasonableness of the accommodations.
 4         The Court of Appeals agreed, and held that
 5  the burden shifting test in Conclusion 36 of the
 6  order to be based on a truncated and incomplete
 7  quotation from the case relied on by the ALJ.
 8         Therefore, the Court held that the
 9  Complainant failed to meet the threshold burden
10  of proving the existence of a reasonable
11  accommodation, and the burden of production never
12  shifted to Belterra, and it was not obligated to
13  introduce evidence regarding the availability of
14  the accommodation.
15         In short, the -- this is a case in which
16  the Commission ultimately determined that the
17  individual was discriminated against based on the
18  disability.  On a review by the Indiana
19  Supreme -- or I'm sorry -- Court of Appeals, that
20  determination was reversed.  The Commission did
21  petition to transfer the case to the Indiana
22  Supreme Court, which ultimately denied the
23  request.
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 1         That's -- again, I understand if there are
 2  additional questions, but that's probably -- as
 3  far as being in a public meeting, that's probably
 4  the most I should discuss today.
 5              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.  And
 6  thank you for, you know, as far as you were able
 7  to go.
 8         And I hope, Commissioners, if you have any
 9  questions, that you will take Deputy Director
10  Schultz up on his offer and arrange a time for a
11  conversation and an opportunity to answer your
12  questions.  Thank you.
13         At this time, are there any announcements?
14                    (No response.)
15              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Actually,
16  if you don't mind, I'd like to go back one step.
17  This would be the appropriate place for me to ask
18  for this.  We were not able to conclude our
19  orientation session last month, and we did have
20  to rush through some of our things.  I would like
21  to ask if there would be any support for us
22  having an orien -- a brief orientation session
23  following the June meeting, just to make sure
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 1  that we can get through all of the things that we
 2  had on our plate for training.  Would there be
 3  any objection or any support to that,
 4  Commissioners?
 5              COMM. TOLLIVER: That would be fine
 6  with me.
 7              COMM. BLACKBURN: I don't have any
 8  objection, except I think we should consider that
 9  Comm. Ramos already has said that he can't be
10  here.  Comm. Harrington has said June and July
11  are in somewhat iffy situations with regards to
12  what's happening locally in other spheres.  So,
13  maybe it could be put out to August.  I -- just a
14  suggestion.
15              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Thank you.
16  That's a very good point.  We didn't have all of
17  us last month either, and so, perhaps we can just
18  put together an orientation document that we can
19  potentially have as a part of our materials prior
20  to our coming months, just to make sure we all
21  have our hands on things.  Okay.
22              COMM. BLACKBURN: That's good.
23              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.


Page 26


 1         Now I'll go back to announcements.  Does
 2  anyone have any announcements?
 3              COMM. BLACKBURN: I'd like to
 4  announce that the Walter and Alpha Blackburn
 5  Scholarship Fund event will occur live the 11th
 6  at the Arts Garden, and I am shamelessly
 7  announcing that anyone interested in supporting
 8  the Scholarship, which goes to students in
 9  architecture or the arts, to reach out to me or
10  on-line and let me know.  I'd appreciate it.
11  Thank you.
12              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
13              THE REPORTER: Comm. Blackburn, what
14  was the date of that?
15              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Are there any
16  other announcements?
17              COMM. BLACKBURN: July 11th, at the
18  Arts Garden.
19              THE REPORTER: Thank you.
20              COMM. HARRINGTON: This is
21  Comm. Harrington.  I will be sending you guys a
22  communication.  The airport has launched an
23  equity insights fireside chat series that will be
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 1  virtual.  Our next event is going to be
 2  June 16th, corresponding with Pride Month.  We
 3  have the Mayor of Long Beach, who is Dr. Robert
 4  Garcia, is going to have a chat with myself and
 5  Mario Rodriguez.
 6         His diverse background is he's probably
 7  the youngest Mayor of Long Beach.  He's openly a
 8  member of the LGBT community, and we just think
 9  it would be very appropriate, as he will appeal
10  to what we call the Emerging Leaders Group and
11  our LGBT community, as well as to our Hispanic
12  and Latinx community.
13         So, we're very excited that he's agreed to
14  have this conversation, and our hope is that by
15  sharing inspirational stories, he can motivate us
16  to learn how to respect one another and work on
17  it together and be more focused.  But I'll send
18  the e-mail to each of you, and share it with the
19  Indiana Civil Rights Commission as well.
20              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Thank you.
21         Are there any additional announcements?
22                    (No response.)
23              CHAIRPERSON SLASH: Okay.  Hearing
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 1  none, is there any public comment at this time?
   
 2              MR. SCHULTZ:  This is Deputy Director
   
 3  Schultz.  I'm not aware of any public comment.
   
 4              CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.
   
 5         At this time, I thank you all for joining
   
 6  us on this lovely afternoon in May, but we will
   
 7  go ahead and adjourn our meeting.  It's 1:30 p.m.
   
 8  on May 21st, 2021.
   
 9                       -  -  -
              Thereupon, the proceedings of
10             May 21, 2021 were concluded
                   at 1:31 o'clock p.m.
11                       -  -  -
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 1                     CERTIFICATE
   
 2         I, Lindy L. Meyer, Jr., the undersigned
   
 3  Court Reporter and Notary Public residing in the
   
 4  City of Shelbyville, Shelby County, Indiana, do
   
 5  hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and
   
 6  correct transcript of the proceedings taken by me
   
 7  on Friday, May 21, 2021 in this matter and
   
 8  transcribed by me.
   
 9 
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 1                                   1:02 o'clock p.m.
                                   May 21, 2021


 2                        -  -  -
  


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  It's 1:01
  


 4   on May 21st, 2021.  I'll call this meeting of the
  


 5   Indiana Civil Rights Commission to order.  Having
  


 6   established our quorum, so if you'd like, can you
  


 7   announce the agenda?
  


 8               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yep.  So, we have first
  


 9   the approval of the previous meeting minutes; the
  


10   ICRC Director's Report; under Old Business, we
  


11   have two appeals appointed to Commissioners to be
  


12   reviewed; under New Business, we have two new
  


13   appeals to be assigned to Commissioners; as far
  


14   as the Review of ALJ Decisions and Orders, we
  


15   have three today for consideration; and then one
  


16   ALJ decision that's been automatically confirmed;
  


17   and then under our last item, we have a brief
  


18   summary from myself regarding a recent decision
  


19   pertaining to a Civil Rights -- or Indiana Civil
  


20   Rights Commission administrative order that was
  


21   reviewed by the Indiana Court of Appeals.
  


22          Chair Slash, I cannot hear you.  I don't
  


23   know if anybody else can.
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I had to hit the
  


 2   mute button.  Thank you.
  


 3          At this time, we'll call for a motion to
  


 4   approve the previous meeting's minutes.
  


 5               COMM. RAMOS:  So moved --
  


 6               COMM. BLACKBURN:  So moved.
  


 7               COMM. RAMOS:  -- Comm. Ramos.
  


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  So,
  


 9   we can take Comm. Blackburn as the motion and
  


10   Vice-Chair Ramos as the second, if that works for
  


11   everyone.
  


12               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes.
  


13               COMM. RAMOS:  That's fine.
  


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  All right.  Shall
  


15   we call the roll?
  


16               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?
  


17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, here.
  


18               MR. SCHULTZ:  Is than an affirmative
  


19   vote to adopt the minutes?
  


20               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Oh, I thought you
  


21   was calling the roll.  So sorry.  That is yes.
  


22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Thank you.
  


23          Comm. Harrington?
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  You're on mute.
  


 2               COMM. HARRINGTON:  I'm sorry; I've
  


 3   got two mute buttons.  Aye.
  


 4               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson's not
  


 5   here.
  


 6          Comm. Tolliver?
  


 7               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Approved.
  


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
  


 9               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.
  


10               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?
  


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


12               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, 5-0.
  


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


14          At this time, we will hear from the staff
  


15   on the ICRC Director's Report.  Commissioners,
  


16   this was e-mailed out this morning.  Hopefully
  


17   you have had a chance to at least open it by now.
  


18               MR. SCHULTZ:  Well, good afternoon to
  


19   everybody.  It's always a pleasure to see you,
  


20   and I hope everybody gets a chance to enjoy the
  


21   weather this weekend.
  


22          As far as the Director's Monthly Report, I
  


23   think there's actually quite a few number --
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 1   quite a few things that I'd like to highlight.
  


 2   First of all, our ADR or mediation metrics, we
  


 3   are really doing very, very well as far as
  


 4   resolving our cases informally, and to give some
  


 5   perspective, at this point last year, we had
  


 6   reported approximately $75,000 in monetary
  


 7   settlement.
  


 8          This month -- or as of April, we were at
  


 9   $265,000 in monetary settlements as far as
  


10   settlements we've formalized here at the agency.
  


11   So, that's a huge increase, and I always like to
  


12   make sure I give credit to our mediators, who
  


13   work very, very hard, as all of our staff does,
  


14   of course.
  


15          The number of overall closures for the
  


16   agency has increased over 25 percent from the
  


17   same time last year, so we are really focusing on
  


18   trying to get cases moving along and closed in a
  


19   timely manner.
  


20          In that same -- on those same lines, the
  


21   number of aged fair housing cases is currently at
  


22   four percent.  It was at 22 percent this time
  


23   last year, so really been focused on fair
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 1   housing.  Of course, last month was Fair Housing
  


 2   Month, and I just want to make sure that you know
  


 3   that those investigators just continue to do
  


 4   really great work.  I wanted to highlight that.
  


 5          And public accommodations, another area of
  


 6   enforcement for us, our aged cases have gone from
  


 7   29 percent a year ago to 12 percent.  So, that's
  


 8   just something we really continue to focus on
  


 9   with our team, making sure we're getting, you
  


10   know, timely investigations done.
  


11          And, you know, some areas -- some things
  


12   that we've done to try to really help give them
  


13   the tools, the investigators the tools, is we've
  


14   adopted a new subpoena policy that really helps
  


15   the investigators when they're dealing with
  


16   parties that are maybe not very forthcoming with
  


17   information.  And that's just something we've
  


18   given them so that they -- that they're allowed
  


19   to do under the law, but it's not a tool that
  


20   we've used very much in the past.  We're working
  


21   on a new default policy.  Again, the idea, we
  


22   don't want cases just sitting out there, we want
  


23   to get them closed.
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 1          And we're actually getting ready to roll
  


 2   out a new standardized question -- I guess policy
  


 3   you can call it, where we're going to be able to
  


 4   get some questions to the complainants a little
  


 5   bit faster, and hopefully we can get that
  


 6   information from them when it's a little more
  


 7   fresh in their minds.  And we're really excited
  


 8   about all of that, and I think it's just going to
  


 9   allow our investigators to continue to keep
  


10   moving these cases along.
  


11          And one other thing, I mean, of course,
  


12   you know, I'm General Counsel, so I've got to
  


13   look at legal, too, and I am happy to say that
  


14   we've gone from the average age of a case from
  


15   the time of the notice of finding in legal, our
  


16   litigation team, from 804 days two months ago to
  


17   650 days.  Obviously we'd always like it to go
  


18   lower, but I think that's just great, great work
  


19   from the legal team.
  


20          And I also want to give Christiana some
  


21   credit there, because she's also made sure that
  


22   some of our databases are up to date, and I'm
  


23   sure that's helped with our numbers as well.
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 1          So, those are a couple of the things I
  


 2   really wanted to highlight for the Commission
  


 3   today.  Any questions for me?
  


 4               COMM. BLACKBURN:  All good news.
  


 5               COMM. RAMOS:  I do have a question.
  


 6   Great job, I agree with Comm. Blackburn, but I
  


 7   notice there was a huge drop in Facebook, a lot
  


 8   of hits and clicks on that.  Was there a reason
  


 9   why there was such a significant drop from March
  


10   to April?
  


11               MR. SCHULTZ:  I can follow up with
  


12   our External Affairs team and see if we can't
  


13   give you an answer.  I'm afraid I don't know the
  


14   answer to that, but we can certainly follow up
  


15   with you, Vice-Chair Ramos.
  


16               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.
  


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I know there was
  


18   a lot last month because of Fair Housing Month,
  


19   so I wonder how much of that ties into the change
  


20   into this month, so I would be intrigued to hear
  


21   that as well.
  


22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Okay.  And if there's
  


23   one thing I'm not qualified to speak about, it's
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 1   social media, so I think I will defer to those
  


 2   with more knowledge than myself.
  


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 4          Are there any other questions?
  


 5                     (No response.)
  


 6               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Hearing
  


 7   none, thank you, and all good news.  Thank you so
  


 8   much for sharing that, specifically the change in
  


 9   the amount of time the cases are taking to move
  


10   through, so it's all good stuff.
  


11          Okay.  At this time, we'll go through Old
  


12   Business.  We had two cases that were assigned
  


13   last month.  The first one was Hoff versus
  


14   Chrysler (FCA US LLC), Case No. EMha19120634.
  


15          Comm. Harrington?
  


16               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Yes.  My
  


17   recommendation regarding this appeal is to refer
  


18   for further investigation, and I will specify in
  


19   writing the investigator -- excuse me -- the
  


20   investigation efforts desired.
  


21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


22          And with it being referred back for
  


23   clarity, do we need to take a vote on that?
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 1               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yes, a vote to --
  


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


 3               MR. SCHULTZ:  -- a motion to affirm
  


 4   that recommendation.
  


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


 6          Is there a motion to affirm?
  


 7               COMM. RAMOS:  So moved.
  


 8               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I so move.
  


 9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  We'll
  


10   take the motion by Vice-Chair Ramos and the
  


11   second, Comm. Blackburn, since we're on
  


12   perfect -- right on time with each other today.
  


13          Okay.  And we can call a roll on the vote
  


14   on that.
  


15               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?
  


16               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes.
  


17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?
  


18               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
  


19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?
  


20               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.
  


21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
  


22               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.
  


23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?
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 1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


 2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, 5-0.
  


 3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 4          And the next case, Russell versus Hyatt
  


 5   Regency Indianapolis, Case No. PAra20040171.
  


 6          Comm. Tolliver?
  


 7               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Good afternoon.  I
  


 8   reviewed the case, and the Commission found there
  


 9   was no probable cause to believe that an unlawful
  


10   discriminatory practice occurred in this
  


11   instance, and I recommend that we affirm the
  


12   original no-cause finding.
  


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


14          Is there a motion?
  


15               COMM. RAMOS:  So moved.
  


16               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I move.
  


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  This is --
  


18   we're having a great virtual meeting here.  So,
  


19   we will go with Vice-Chair Ramos with the motion
  


20   and Comm. Blackburn with the second.
  


21          Okay.  Can you call the roll?
  


22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?
  


23               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Aye, Blackburn.







13


  
 1               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?
  


 2               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
  


 3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?
  


 4               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.
  


 5               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
  


 6               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.
  


 7               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?
  


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


 9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, 5-0.
  


10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I'm going to try
  


11   to do the New Business a little according to
  


12   memory in the past couple of months.  I will
  


13   assign the first case, Mayers versus Marion
  


14   Superior Court, EMra19120129, to Vice-Chair
  


15   Ramos.
  


16               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.
  


17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  And the second
  


18   case, Strachan v. St. Joseph County Public
  


19   Library, Case PAha21030072, to myself.  I think
  


20   that way we've made it through all of us in the
  


21   past couple of months.
  


22          Okay.  So, moving on to the Administrative
  


23   Law Judge's Orders disposing of the proceedings,
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 1   the first one is ICRC versus Herman Kittle
  


 2   Properties, Case HOha20060205.  On this one, the
  


 3   ALJ dismissed the Indiana Fair Housing Act claim
  


 4   based on a Notice of Election, and the objection
  


 5   period in this matter has closed.
  


 6          Is there a -- is there a motion to affirm
  


 7   this?
  


 8               COMM. HARRINGTON:  This is
  


 9   Comm. Harrington.  I move that we affirm the
  


10   ALJ's decision to dismiss.
  


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


12          Is there a second?
  


13               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn seconds.
  


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


15          We shall call the roll.
  


16               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?
  


17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes.
  


18               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?
  


19               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
  


20               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?
  


21               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.
  


22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
  


23               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.







15


  
 1               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?
  


 2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


 3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, 5-0.
  


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 5          And the next case, ICRC versus Varin/River
  


 6   Pointe, LLC, Case HOha15100734.  This was
  


 7   submitted to the Commission on April 15th, 2021.
  


 8   The ALJ conducted a hearing on the merits and
  


 9   dismissed the matter.  Complainant -- the
  


10   Complainant has filed objections and has
  


11   requested the Commission to set a briefing
  


12   deadline as well as schedule an oral argument.
  


13          We have officially reached this wonderful
  


14   time of the year where holidays kind of jumble up
  


15   dates and times, but with this one, I would like
  


16   to propose that we schedule -- that we make the
  


17   briefing deadline 30 days from today and oral
  


18   argument for our following meeting, so that would
  


19   be 30 days from today for the briefing, and the
  


20   following meeting would be our July Commission
  


21   meeting for oral arguments.
  


22          Is there any interest in a motion on that?
  


23               COMM. HARRINGTON:  This is







16


  
 1   Comm. Harrington.  I move that we grant the
  


 2   request of the Complainant, with the time line
  


 3   you identified, with 30 days for the briefing and
  


 4   60 days for the argument, so for June and July.
  


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 6          Is there a second?
  


 7               COMM. RAMOS:  Second, Ramos.
  


 8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 9          Shall we call the roll?
  


10               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yes.  And if I may, I'm
  


11   going to restate the motion as I understood it.
  


12   The motion --
  


13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


14               MR. SCHULTZ:  -- is to set a briefing
  


15   deadline for objection briefs 30 days from today,
  


16   with oral arguments scheduled for the July 2021
  


17   meeting; is that correct?
  


18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  That is correct.
  


19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?
  


20               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, no.
  


21               MR. SCHULTZ:  I'm sorry,
  


22   Comm. Blackburn; you cut out.
  


23               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, no.
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 1               MR. SCHULTZ:  I have a no; is that
  


 2   correct?
  


 3               COMM. BLACKBURN:  That is correct.
  


 4               MR. SCHULTZ:  Thank you.
  


 5          Comm. Harrington?
  


 6               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.
  


 7               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?
  


 8               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.
  


 9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?
  


10               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.
  


11               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?
  


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.
  


13               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, 4 to 1.
  


14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


15          The next one, ICRC versus Woodlands
  


16   Winding Brook Homeowners Association,
  


17   HOha20060202, submitted to the Commission on
  


18   May 6th, 2021.  The ALJ dismissed the Indiana
  


19   Fair Housing Act claim based on Notice of
  


20   Election.  The objection period closes on
  


21   May 21st, therefore, it's not quite over yet,
  


22   today is the day, so there's no action required
  


23   on this one.  We will take this matter up next
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 1   month.
  


 2          Okay.  So, we have one case today that the
  


 3   AL -- that was an ALJ decision that was
  


 4   automatically confirmed, and that case was
  


 5   Lisbeth Mora versus Lee's Nails & Spa, ICRC
  


 6   Case EMno19040225.  Is there any comment or
  


 7   anything to share with the Commissioners on this
  


 8   one, Deputy Director Schultz?
  


 9               MR. SCHULTZ:  No additional
  


10   information to share at this time, no.
  


11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


12   And that one, once again, was automatically
  


13   confirmed.
  


14          So, with that being said, our next meeting
  


15   dates do tend to be the ones that are fairly
  


16   important for us to look at, and now that we have
  


17   set an oral argument for the July meeting, we do
  


18   likely need to have discussion, specifically on
  


19   the next two months' dates, to make sure that we
  


20   have a full Commission available.  Are there any
  


21   issues, concerns with either the June 18th date
  


22   or the July 16th date?
  


23               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I will not -- July.
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 1               THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry; I'm not
  


 2   hearing that clearly.
  


 3               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I will not be
  


 4   available July.
  


 5               THE REPORTER:  Thank you.
  


 6               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


 7               COMM. RAMOS:  I also had a conflict
  


 8   on June 18th.
  


 9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


10          You are muted, Comm. Harrington.
  


11               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Thank you.  I'm
  


12   sorry; I have a new speaker.  Just for
  


13   information, for the July meeting, that is the
  


14   week of Indiana Black Expo celebration.  Their
  


15   full schedule is not out, but typically we have a
  


16   conflict, so we may just want to monitor the
  


17   schedule, because we may have some conflicts in
  


18   June.
  


19               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.
  


20          So, at this time, it sounds like we may be
  


21   okay with June, but we need to revisit July at
  


22   the June meeting.  Okay.  Thank you.  We'll pay
  


23   very close attention to attendance and try to
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 1   schedule as quickly as possible for the public to
  


 2   know.
  


 3          Okay.  And then under our next section,
  


 4   Election/Training and Other, the Cause Data
  


 5   Analysis, Deputy Director Schultz, would you like
  


 6   to speak to that briefly, since we were not all
  


 7   on the call prior to the start of the meeting?
  


 8               MR. SCHULTZ:  Sure.  As far as the
  


 9   Cause Data Analysis that Vice-Chair Ramos had
  


10   requested, I'm still working on that project.  I
  


11   don't have any better excuse other than I just
  


12   haven't finished it.  I do apologize, but I do
  


13   intend to have it done for the next meeting.
  


14               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.
  


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  And then Deputy
  


16   Director Schultz, would you like to speak to the
  


17   case that we have listed here?
  


18               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yes.  So, I do have to
  


19   keep my comments fairly brief regarding the
  


20   summary of this case.  This is a decision that
  


21   was handed down by the Indiana Court of Appeals,
  


22   but in my role as the General Counsel for the
  


23   agency, anything I say on the record could be
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 1   construed as official legal interpretation.  So,
  


 2   I will happily talk to any of the Commissioners
  


 3   one on one if they have additional questions, but
  


 4   I will keep my summary fairly brief today.
  


 5          This is a case that came before the
  


 6   Commission.  Specifically, Belterra Casino hired
  


 7   the Complainant, a Chinese national, as a guest
  


 8   room attendant.  The Complainant injured her back
  


 9   and was placed on medical restrictions that could
  


10   not be accommodated in her current position.
  


11          Belterra gave Dusan a list -- or the
  


12   Complainant a list of positions, told her to work
  


13   with Human Resources if she had any questions,
  


14   and informed her that her employment would be
  


15   terminated if she did not find a new position
  


16   within 30 days.  Dusan -- or the Complainant did
  


17   not apply for any positions, stopped going to
  


18   work, and was terminated.
  


19          Complainant filed a complaint with the
  


20   Indiana Civil Rights Commission alleging that
  


21   Belterra had discriminated against her based on
  


22   national origin and disability.
  


23          After an administrative hearing, an ALJ
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 1   dismissed Complainant's national origin claim but
  


 2   ruled in favor of -- on her disability claim,
  


 3   including that Belterra discriminated against her
  


 4   by failing to provide her with a reasonable
  


 5   accommodation for her disability.
  


 6          The ALJ awarded the Complainant
  


 7   approximately $76,000 in back pay.  The
  


 8   Commission subsequently affirmed and adopted the
  


 9   ALJ's order in its -- I'm sorry -- the ALJ's
  


10   final order.
  


11          Belterra appealed to the Indiana Court of
  


12   Appeals, arguing that the Commission applied an
  


13   incorrect burden of proof, erred in finding that
  


14   the Complainant could perform the essential
  


15   functions of a barista with or without an
  


16   accommodation, and erred in finding that
  


17   extending Complainant's restriction period was a
  


18   reasonable accommodation.
  


19          Belterra contended that the Commission
  


20   incorrectly applied the burden of proof by
  


21   suggesting possible accommodations, which
  


22   Complainant never asserted for the first time --
  


23   or made these suggestions for the first time in
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 1   the ALJ order, and then holding Belterra
  


 2   responsible for failure to disprove the
  


 3   reasonableness of the accommodations.
  


 4          The Court of Appeals agreed, and held that
  


 5   the burden shifting test in Conclusion 36 of the
  


 6   order to be based on a truncated and incomplete
  


 7   quotation from the case relied on by the ALJ.
  


 8          Therefore, the Court held that the
  


 9   Complainant failed to meet the threshold burden
  


10   of proving the existence of a reasonable
  


11   accommodation, and the burden of production never
  


12   shifted to Belterra, and it was not obligated to
  


13   introduce evidence regarding the availability of
  


14   the accommodation.
  


15          In short, the -- this is a case in which
  


16   the Commission ultimately determined that the
  


17   individual was discriminated against based on the
  


18   disability.  On a review by the Indiana
  


19   Supreme -- or I'm sorry -- Court of Appeals, that
  


20   determination was reversed.  The Commission did
  


21   petition to transfer the case to the Indiana
  


22   Supreme Court, which ultimately denied the
  


23   request.
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 1          That's -- again, I understand if there are
  


 2   additional questions, but that's probably -- as
  


 3   far as being in a public meeting, that's probably
  


 4   the most I should discuss today.
  


 5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  And
  


 6   thank you for, you know, as far as you were able
  


 7   to go.
  


 8          And I hope, Commissioners, if you have any
  


 9   questions, that you will take Deputy Director
  


10   Schultz up on his offer and arrange a time for a
  


11   conversation and an opportunity to answer your
  


12   questions.  Thank you.
  


13          At this time, are there any announcements?
  


14                     (No response.)
  


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Actually,
  


16   if you don't mind, I'd like to go back one step.
  


17   This would be the appropriate place for me to ask
  


18   for this.  We were not able to conclude our
  


19   orientation session last month, and we did have
  


20   to rush through some of our things.  I would like
  


21   to ask if there would be any support for us
  


22   having an orien -- a brief orientation session
  


23   following the June meeting, just to make sure
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 1   that we can get through all of the things that we
  


 2   had on our plate for training.  Would there be
  


 3   any objection or any support to that,
  


 4   Commissioners?
  


 5               COMM. TOLLIVER:  That would be fine
  


 6   with me.
  


 7               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I don't have any
  


 8   objection, except I think we should consider that
  


 9   Comm. Ramos already has said that he can't be
  


10   here.  Comm. Harrington has said June and July
  


11   are in somewhat iffy situations with regards to
  


12   what's happening locally in other spheres.  So,
  


13   maybe it could be put out to August.  I -- just a
  


14   suggestion.
  


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


16   That's a very good point.  We didn't have all of
  


17   us last month either, and so, perhaps we can just
  


18   put together an orientation document that we can
  


19   potentially have as a part of our materials prior
  


20   to our coming months, just to make sure we all
  


21   have our hands on things.  Okay.
  


22               COMM. BLACKBURN:  That's good.
  


23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
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 1          Now I'll go back to announcements.  Does
  


 2   anyone have any announcements?
  


 3               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I'd like to
  


 4   announce that the Walter and Alpha Blackburn
  


 5   Scholarship Fund event will occur live the 11th
  


 6   at the Arts Garden, and I am shamelessly
  


 7   announcing that anyone interested in supporting
  


 8   the Scholarship, which goes to students in
  


 9   architecture or the arts, to reach out to me or
  


10   on-line and let me know.  I'd appreciate it.
  


11   Thank you.
  


12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


13               THE REPORTER:  Comm. Blackburn, what
  


14   was the date of that?
  


15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Are there any
  


16   other announcements?
  


17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  July 11th, at the
  


18   Arts Garden.
  


19               THE REPORTER:  Thank you.
  


20               COMM. HARRINGTON:  This is
  


21   Comm. Harrington.  I will be sending you guys a
  


22   communication.  The airport has launched an
  


23   equity insights fireside chat series that will be
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 1   virtual.  Our next event is going to be
  


 2   June 16th, corresponding with Pride Month.  We
  


 3   have the Mayor of Long Beach, who is Dr. Robert
  


 4   Garcia, is going to have a chat with myself and
  


 5   Mario Rodriguez.
  


 6          His diverse background is he's probably
  


 7   the youngest Mayor of Long Beach.  He's openly a
  


 8   member of the LGBT community, and we just think
  


 9   it would be very appropriate, as he will appeal
  


10   to what we call the Emerging Leaders Group and
  


11   our LGBT community, as well as to our Hispanic
  


12   and Latinx community.
  


13          So, we're very excited that he's agreed to
  


14   have this conversation, and our hope is that by
  


15   sharing inspirational stories, he can motivate us
  


16   to learn how to respect one another and work on
  


17   it together and be more focused.  But I'll send
  


18   the e-mail to each of you, and share it with the
  


19   Indiana Civil Rights Commission as well.
  


20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
  


21          Are there any additional announcements?
  


22                     (No response.)
  


23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Hearing
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 1   none, is there any public comment at this time?
  


 2               MR. SCHULTZ:  This is Deputy Director
  


 3   Schultz.  I'm not aware of any public comment.
  


 4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.
  


 5          At this time, I thank you all for joining
  


 6   us on this lovely afternoon in May, but we will
  


 7   go ahead and adjourn our meeting.  It's 1:30 p.m.
  


 8   on May 21st, 2021.
  


 9                        -  -  -
             Thereupon, the proceedings of


10              May 21, 2021 were concluded
                  at 1:31 o'clock p.m.


11                        -  -  -
  


12
  


13
  


14
  


15
  


16
  


17
  


18
  


19
  


20
  


21
  


22
  


23
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 1                      CERTIFICATE
  


 2          I, Lindy L. Meyer, Jr., the undersigned
  


 3   Court Reporter and Notary Public residing in the
  


 4   City of Shelbyville, Shelby County, Indiana, do
  


 5   hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and
  


 6   correct transcript of the proceedings taken by me
  


 7   on Friday, May 21, 2021 in this matter and
  


 8   transcribed by me.
  


 9
  


10                        _________________________
  


11                         Lindy L. Meyer, Jr.,
  


12                         Notary Public in and
  


13                         for the State of Indiana.
  


14
  


15   My Commission expires August 26, 2024.
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            1                                   1:02 o'clock p.m.

                                                May 21, 2021

            2                        -  -  -



            3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  It's 1:01



            4   on May 21st, 2021.  I'll call this meeting of the



            5   Indiana Civil Rights Commission to order.  Having



            6   established our quorum, so if you'd like, can you



            7   announce the agenda?



            8               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yep.  So, we have first



            9   the approval of the previous meeting minutes; the



           10   ICRC Director's Report; under Old Business, we



           11   have two appeals appointed to Commissioners to be



           12   reviewed; under New Business, we have two new



           13   appeals to be assigned to Commissioners; as far



           14   as the Review of ALJ Decisions and Orders, we



           15   have three today for consideration; and then one



           16   ALJ decision that's been automatically confirmed;



           17   and then under our last item, we have a brief



           18   summary from myself regarding a recent decision



           19   pertaining to a Civil Rights -- or Indiana Civil



           20   Rights Commission administrative order that was



           21   reviewed by the Indiana Court of Appeals.



           22          Chair Slash, I cannot hear you.  I don't



           23   know if anybody else can.
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            1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I had to hit the



            2   mute button.  Thank you.



            3          At this time, we'll call for a motion to



            4   approve the previous meeting's minutes.



            5               COMM. RAMOS:  So moved --



            6               COMM. BLACKBURN:  So moved.



            7               COMM. RAMOS:  -- Comm. Ramos.



            8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  So,



            9   we can take Comm. Blackburn as the motion and



           10   Vice-Chair Ramos as the second, if that works for



           11   everyone.



           12               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes.



           13               COMM. RAMOS:  That's fine.



           14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  All right.  Shall



           15   we call the roll?



           16               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?



           17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, here.



           18               MR. SCHULTZ:  Is than an affirmative



           19   vote to adopt the minutes?



           20               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Oh, I thought you



           21   was calling the roll.  So sorry.  That is yes.



           22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Thank you.



           23          Comm. Harrington?
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            1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  You're on mute.



            2               COMM. HARRINGTON:  I'm sorry; I've



            3   got two mute buttons.  Aye.



            4               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Jackson's not



            5   here.



            6          Comm. Tolliver?



            7               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Approved.



            8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Vice-Chair Ramos?



            9               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.



           10               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?



           11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.



           12               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, 5-0.



           13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           14          At this time, we will hear from the staff



           15   on the ICRC Director's Report.  Commissioners,



           16   this was e-mailed out this morning.  Hopefully



           17   you have had a chance to at least open it by now.



           18               MR. SCHULTZ:  Well, good afternoon to



           19   everybody.  It's always a pleasure to see you,



           20   and I hope everybody gets a chance to enjoy the



           21   weather this weekend.



           22          As far as the Director's Monthly Report, I



           23   think there's actually quite a few number --
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            1   quite a few things that I'd like to highlight.



            2   First of all, our ADR or mediation metrics, we



            3   are really doing very, very well as far as



            4   resolving our cases informally, and to give some



            5   perspective, at this point last year, we had



            6   reported approximately $75,000 in monetary



            7   settlement.



            8          This month -- or as of April, we were at



            9   $265,000 in monetary settlements as far as



           10   settlements we've formalized here at the agency.



           11   So, that's a huge increase, and I always like to



           12   make sure I give credit to our mediators, who



           13   work very, very hard, as all of our staff does,



           14   of course.



           15          The number of overall closures for the



           16   agency has increased over 25 percent from the



           17   same time last year, so we are really focusing on



           18   trying to get cases moving along and closed in a



           19   timely manner.



           20          In that same -- on those same lines, the



           21   number of aged fair housing cases is currently at



           22   four percent.  It was at 22 percent this time



           23   last year, so really been focused on fair

�







                                                                 7







            1   housing.  Of course, last month was Fair Housing



            2   Month, and I just want to make sure that you know



            3   that those investigators just continue to do



            4   really great work.  I wanted to highlight that.



            5          And public accommodations, another area of



            6   enforcement for us, our aged cases have gone from



            7   29 percent a year ago to 12 percent.  So, that's



            8   just something we really continue to focus on



            9   with our team, making sure we're getting, you



           10   know, timely investigations done.



           11          And, you know, some areas -- some things



           12   that we've done to try to really help give them



           13   the tools, the investigators the tools, is we've



           14   adopted a new subpoena policy that really helps



           15   the investigators when they're dealing with



           16   parties that are maybe not very forthcoming with



           17   information.  And that's just something we've



           18   given them so that they -- that they're allowed



           19   to do under the law, but it's not a tool that



           20   we've used very much in the past.  We're working



           21   on a new default policy.  Again, the idea, we



           22   don't want cases just sitting out there, we want



           23   to get them closed.
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            1          And we're actually getting ready to roll



            2   out a new standardized question -- I guess policy



            3   you can call it, where we're going to be able to



            4   get some questions to the complainants a little



            5   bit faster, and hopefully we can get that



            6   information from them when it's a little more



            7   fresh in their minds.  And we're really excited



            8   about all of that, and I think it's just going to



            9   allow our investigators to continue to keep



           10   moving these cases along.



           11          And one other thing, I mean, of course,



           12   you know, I'm General Counsel, so I've got to



           13   look at legal, too, and I am happy to say that



           14   we've gone from the average age of a case from



           15   the time of the notice of finding in legal, our



           16   litigation team, from 804 days two months ago to



           17   650 days.  Obviously we'd always like it to go



           18   lower, but I think that's just great, great work



           19   from the legal team.



           20          And I also want to give Christiana some



           21   credit there, because she's also made sure that



           22   some of our databases are up to date, and I'm



           23   sure that's helped with our numbers as well.

�







                                                                 9







            1          So, those are a couple of the things I



            2   really wanted to highlight for the Commission



            3   today.  Any questions for me?



            4               COMM. BLACKBURN:  All good news.



            5               COMM. RAMOS:  I do have a question.



            6   Great job, I agree with Comm. Blackburn, but I



            7   notice there was a huge drop in Facebook, a lot



            8   of hits and clicks on that.  Was there a reason



            9   why there was such a significant drop from March



           10   to April?



           11               MR. SCHULTZ:  I can follow up with



           12   our External Affairs team and see if we can't



           13   give you an answer.  I'm afraid I don't know the



           14   answer to that, but we can certainly follow up



           15   with you, Vice-Chair Ramos.



           16               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.



           17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I know there was



           18   a lot last month because of Fair Housing Month,



           19   so I wonder how much of that ties into the change



           20   into this month, so I would be intrigued to hear



           21   that as well.



           22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Okay.  And if there's



           23   one thing I'm not qualified to speak about, it's
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            1   social media, so I think I will defer to those



            2   with more knowledge than myself.



            3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            4          Are there any other questions?



            5                     (No response.)



            6               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Hearing



            7   none, thank you, and all good news.  Thank you so



            8   much for sharing that, specifically the change in



            9   the amount of time the cases are taking to move



           10   through, so it's all good stuff.



           11          Okay.  At this time, we'll go through Old



           12   Business.  We had two cases that were assigned



           13   last month.  The first one was Hoff versus



           14   Chrysler (FCA US LLC), Case No. EMha19120634.



           15          Comm. Harrington?



           16               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Yes.  My



           17   recommendation regarding this appeal is to refer



           18   for further investigation, and I will specify in



           19   writing the investigator -- excuse me -- the



           20   investigation efforts desired.



           21               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           22          And with it being referred back for



           23   clarity, do we need to take a vote on that?
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            1               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yes, a vote to --



            2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.



            3               MR. SCHULTZ:  -- a motion to affirm



            4   that recommendation.



            5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.



            6          Is there a motion to affirm?



            7               COMM. RAMOS:  So moved.



            8               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I so move.



            9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  We'll



           10   take the motion by Vice-Chair Ramos and the



           11   second, Comm. Blackburn, since we're on



           12   perfect -- right on time with each other today.



           13          Okay.  And we can call a roll on the vote



           14   on that.



           15               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?



           16               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes.



           17               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?



           18               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.



           19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?



           20               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.



           21               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?



           22               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.



           23               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?
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            1               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.



            2               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, 5-0.



            3               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            4          And the next case, Russell versus Hyatt



            5   Regency Indianapolis, Case No. PAra20040171.



            6          Comm. Tolliver?



            7               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Good afternoon.  I



            8   reviewed the case, and the Commission found there



            9   was no probable cause to believe that an unlawful



           10   discriminatory practice occurred in this



           11   instance, and I recommend that we affirm the



           12   original no-cause finding.



           13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           14          Is there a motion?



           15               COMM. RAMOS:  So moved.



           16               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I move.



           17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  This is --



           18   we're having a great virtual meeting here.  So,



           19   we will go with Vice-Chair Ramos with the motion



           20   and Comm. Blackburn with the second.



           21          Okay.  Can you call the roll?



           22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?



           23               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Aye, Blackburn.
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            1               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?



            2               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.



            3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?



            4               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.



            5               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?



            6               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.



            7               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?



            8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.



            9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, 5-0.



           10               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  I'm going to try



           11   to do the New Business a little according to



           12   memory in the past couple of months.  I will



           13   assign the first case, Mayers versus Marion



           14   Superior Court, EMra19120129, to Vice-Chair



           15   Ramos.



           16               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.



           17               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  And the second



           18   case, Strachan v. St. Joseph County Public



           19   Library, Case PAha21030072, to myself.  I think



           20   that way we've made it through all of us in the



           21   past couple of months.



           22          Okay.  So, moving on to the Administrative



           23   Law Judge's Orders disposing of the proceedings,
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            1   the first one is ICRC versus Herman Kittle



            2   Properties, Case HOha20060205.  On this one, the



            3   ALJ dismissed the Indiana Fair Housing Act claim



            4   based on a Notice of Election, and the objection



            5   period in this matter has closed.



            6          Is there a -- is there a motion to affirm



            7   this?



            8               COMM. HARRINGTON:  This is



            9   Comm. Harrington.  I move that we affirm the



           10   ALJ's decision to dismiss.



           11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           12          Is there a second?



           13               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn seconds.



           14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           15          We shall call the roll.



           16               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?



           17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Yes.



           18               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Harrington?



           19               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.



           20               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?



           21               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.



           22               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?



           23               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.
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            1               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?



            2               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.



            3               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, 5-0.



            4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            5          And the next case, ICRC versus Varin/River



            6   Pointe, LLC, Case HOha15100734.  This was



            7   submitted to the Commission on April 15th, 2021.



            8   The ALJ conducted a hearing on the merits and



            9   dismissed the matter.  Complainant -- the



           10   Complainant has filed objections and has



           11   requested the Commission to set a briefing



           12   deadline as well as schedule an oral argument.



           13          We have officially reached this wonderful



           14   time of the year where holidays kind of jumble up



           15   dates and times, but with this one, I would like



           16   to propose that we schedule -- that we make the



           17   briefing deadline 30 days from today and oral



           18   argument for our following meeting, so that would



           19   be 30 days from today for the briefing, and the



           20   following meeting would be our July Commission



           21   meeting for oral arguments.



           22          Is there any interest in a motion on that?



           23               COMM. HARRINGTON:  This is
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            1   Comm. Harrington.  I move that we grant the



            2   request of the Complainant, with the time line



            3   you identified, with 30 days for the briefing and



            4   60 days for the argument, so for June and July.



            5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            6          Is there a second?



            7               COMM. RAMOS:  Second, Ramos.



            8               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            9          Shall we call the roll?



           10               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yes.  And if I may, I'm



           11   going to restate the motion as I understood it.



           12   The motion --



           13               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.



           14               MR. SCHULTZ:  -- is to set a briefing



           15   deadline for objection briefs 30 days from today,



           16   with oral arguments scheduled for the July 2021



           17   meeting; is that correct?



           18               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  That is correct.



           19               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Blackburn?



           20               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, no.



           21               MR. SCHULTZ:  I'm sorry,



           22   Comm. Blackburn; you cut out.



           23               COMM. BLACKBURN:  Blackburn, no.
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            1               MR. SCHULTZ:  I have a no; is that



            2   correct?



            3               COMM. BLACKBURN:  That is correct.



            4               MR. SCHULTZ:  Thank you.



            5          Comm. Harrington?



            6               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Aye.



            7               MR. SCHULTZ:  Comm. Tolliver?



            8               COMM. TOLLIVER:  Aye.



            9               MR. SCHULTZ:  Vice-Chair Ramos?



           10               COMM. RAMOS:  Aye.



           11               MR. SCHULTZ:  Chair Slash?



           12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Aye.



           13               MR. SCHULTZ:  Motion passes, 4 to 1.



           14               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.



           15          The next one, ICRC versus Woodlands



           16   Winding Brook Homeowners Association,



           17   HOha20060202, submitted to the Commission on



           18   May 6th, 2021.  The ALJ dismissed the Indiana



           19   Fair Housing Act claim based on Notice of



           20   Election.  The objection period closes on



           21   May 21st, therefore, it's not quite over yet,



           22   today is the day, so there's no action required



           23   on this one.  We will take this matter up next
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            1   month.



            2          Okay.  So, we have one case today that the



            3   AL -- that was an ALJ decision that was



            4   automatically confirmed, and that case was



            5   Lisbeth Mora versus Lee's Nails & Spa, ICRC



            6   Case EMno19040225.  Is there any comment or



            7   anything to share with the Commissioners on this



            8   one, Deputy Director Schultz?



            9               MR. SCHULTZ:  No additional



           10   information to share at this time, no.



           11               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.



           12   And that one, once again, was automatically



           13   confirmed.



           14          So, with that being said, our next meeting



           15   dates do tend to be the ones that are fairly



           16   important for us to look at, and now that we have



           17   set an oral argument for the July meeting, we do



           18   likely need to have discussion, specifically on



           19   the next two months' dates, to make sure that we



           20   have a full Commission available.  Are there any



           21   issues, concerns with either the June 18th date



           22   or the July 16th date?



           23               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I will not -- July.
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            1               THE REPORTER:  I'm sorry; I'm not



            2   hearing that clearly.



            3               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I will not be



            4   available July.



            5               THE REPORTER:  Thank you.



            6               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



            7               COMM. RAMOS:  I also had a conflict



            8   on June 18th.



            9               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.



           10          You are muted, Comm. Harrington.



           11               COMM. HARRINGTON:  Thank you.  I'm



           12   sorry; I have a new speaker.  Just for



           13   information, for the July meeting, that is the



           14   week of Indiana Black Expo celebration.  Their



           15   full schedule is not out, but typically we have a



           16   conflict, so we may just want to monitor the



           17   schedule, because we may have some conflicts in



           18   June.



           19               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.



           20          So, at this time, it sounds like we may be



           21   okay with June, but we need to revisit July at



           22   the June meeting.  Okay.  Thank you.  We'll pay



           23   very close attention to attendance and try to
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            1   schedule as quickly as possible for the public to



            2   know.



            3          Okay.  And then under our next section,



            4   Election/Training and Other, the Cause Data



            5   Analysis, Deputy Director Schultz, would you like



            6   to speak to that briefly, since we were not all



            7   on the call prior to the start of the meeting?



            8               MR. SCHULTZ:  Sure.  As far as the



            9   Cause Data Analysis that Vice-Chair Ramos had



           10   requested, I'm still working on that project.  I



           11   don't have any better excuse other than I just



           12   haven't finished it.  I do apologize, but I do



           13   intend to have it done for the next meeting.



           14               COMM. RAMOS:  Thank you.



           15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  And then Deputy



           16   Director Schultz, would you like to speak to the



           17   case that we have listed here?



           18               MR. SCHULTZ:  Yes.  So, I do have to



           19   keep my comments fairly brief regarding the



           20   summary of this case.  This is a decision that



           21   was handed down by the Indiana Court of Appeals,



           22   but in my role as the General Counsel for the



           23   agency, anything I say on the record could be
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            1   construed as official legal interpretation.  So,



            2   I will happily talk to any of the Commissioners



            3   one on one if they have additional questions, but



            4   I will keep my summary fairly brief today.



            5          This is a case that came before the



            6   Commission.  Specifically, Belterra Casino hired



            7   the Complainant, a Chinese national, as a guest



            8   room attendant.  The Complainant injured her back



            9   and was placed on medical restrictions that could



           10   not be accommodated in her current position.



           11          Belterra gave Dusan a list -- or the



           12   Complainant a list of positions, told her to work



           13   with Human Resources if she had any questions,



           14   and informed her that her employment would be



           15   terminated if she did not find a new position



           16   within 30 days.  Dusan -- or the Complainant did



           17   not apply for any positions, stopped going to



           18   work, and was terminated.



           19          Complainant filed a complaint with the



           20   Indiana Civil Rights Commission alleging that



           21   Belterra had discriminated against her based on



           22   national origin and disability.



           23          After an administrative hearing, an ALJ
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            1   dismissed Complainant's national origin claim but



            2   ruled in favor of -- on her disability claim,



            3   including that Belterra discriminated against her



            4   by failing to provide her with a reasonable



            5   accommodation for her disability.



            6          The ALJ awarded the Complainant



            7   approximately $76,000 in back pay.  The



            8   Commission subsequently affirmed and adopted the



            9   ALJ's order in its -- I'm sorry -- the ALJ's



           10   final order.



           11          Belterra appealed to the Indiana Court of



           12   Appeals, arguing that the Commission applied an



           13   incorrect burden of proof, erred in finding that



           14   the Complainant could perform the essential



           15   functions of a barista with or without an



           16   accommodation, and erred in finding that



           17   extending Complainant's restriction period was a



           18   reasonable accommodation.



           19          Belterra contended that the Commission



           20   incorrectly applied the burden of proof by



           21   suggesting possible accommodations, which



           22   Complainant never asserted for the first time --



           23   or made these suggestions for the first time in
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            1   the ALJ order, and then holding Belterra



            2   responsible for failure to disprove the



            3   reasonableness of the accommodations.



            4          The Court of Appeals agreed, and held that



            5   the burden shifting test in Conclusion 36 of the



            6   order to be based on a truncated and incomplete



            7   quotation from the case relied on by the ALJ.



            8          Therefore, the Court held that the



            9   Complainant failed to meet the threshold burden



           10   of proving the existence of a reasonable



           11   accommodation, and the burden of production never



           12   shifted to Belterra, and it was not obligated to



           13   introduce evidence regarding the availability of



           14   the accommodation.



           15          In short, the -- this is a case in which



           16   the Commission ultimately determined that the



           17   individual was discriminated against based on the



           18   disability.  On a review by the Indiana



           19   Supreme -- or I'm sorry -- Court of Appeals, that



           20   determination was reversed.  The Commission did



           21   petition to transfer the case to the Indiana



           22   Supreme Court, which ultimately denied the



           23   request.
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            1          That's -- again, I understand if there are



            2   additional questions, but that's probably -- as



            3   far as being in a public meeting, that's probably



            4   the most I should discuss today.



            5               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.  And



            6   thank you for, you know, as far as you were able



            7   to go.



            8          And I hope, Commissioners, if you have any



            9   questions, that you will take Deputy Director



           10   Schultz up on his offer and arrange a time for a



           11   conversation and an opportunity to answer your



           12   questions.  Thank you.



           13          At this time, are there any announcements?



           14                     (No response.)



           15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Actually,



           16   if you don't mind, I'd like to go back one step.



           17   This would be the appropriate place for me to ask



           18   for this.  We were not able to conclude our



           19   orientation session last month, and we did have



           20   to rush through some of our things.  I would like



           21   to ask if there would be any support for us



           22   having an orien -- a brief orientation session



           23   following the June meeting, just to make sure
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            1   that we can get through all of the things that we



            2   had on our plate for training.  Would there be



            3   any objection or any support to that,



            4   Commissioners?



            5               COMM. TOLLIVER:  That would be fine



            6   with me.



            7               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I don't have any



            8   objection, except I think we should consider that



            9   Comm. Ramos already has said that he can't be



           10   here.  Comm. Harrington has said June and July



           11   are in somewhat iffy situations with regards to



           12   what's happening locally in other spheres.  So,



           13   maybe it could be put out to August.  I -- just a



           14   suggestion.



           15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.



           16   That's a very good point.  We didn't have all of



           17   us last month either, and so, perhaps we can just



           18   put together an orientation document that we can



           19   potentially have as a part of our materials prior



           20   to our coming months, just to make sure we all



           21   have our hands on things.  Okay.



           22               COMM. BLACKBURN:  That's good.



           23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.
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            1          Now I'll go back to announcements.  Does



            2   anyone have any announcements?



            3               COMM. BLACKBURN:  I'd like to



            4   announce that the Walter and Alpha Blackburn



            5   Scholarship Fund event will occur live the 11th



            6   at the Arts Garden, and I am shamelessly



            7   announcing that anyone interested in supporting



            8   the Scholarship, which goes to students in



            9   architecture or the arts, to reach out to me or



           10   on-line and let me know.  I'd appreciate it.



           11   Thank you.



           12               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           13               THE REPORTER:  Comm. Blackburn, what



           14   was the date of that?



           15               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Are there any



           16   other announcements?



           17               COMM. BLACKBURN:  July 11th, at the



           18   Arts Garden.



           19               THE REPORTER:  Thank you.



           20               COMM. HARRINGTON:  This is



           21   Comm. Harrington.  I will be sending you guys a



           22   communication.  The airport has launched an



           23   equity insights fireside chat series that will be
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            1   virtual.  Our next event is going to be



            2   June 16th, corresponding with Pride Month.  We



            3   have the Mayor of Long Beach, who is Dr. Robert



            4   Garcia, is going to have a chat with myself and



            5   Mario Rodriguez.



            6          His diverse background is he's probably



            7   the youngest Mayor of Long Beach.  He's openly a



            8   member of the LGBT community, and we just think



            9   it would be very appropriate, as he will appeal



           10   to what we call the Emerging Leaders Group and



           11   our LGBT community, as well as to our Hispanic



           12   and Latinx community.



           13          So, we're very excited that he's agreed to



           14   have this conversation, and our hope is that by



           15   sharing inspirational stories, he can motivate us



           16   to learn how to respect one another and work on



           17   it together and be more focused.  But I'll send



           18   the e-mail to each of you, and share it with the



           19   Indiana Civil Rights Commission as well.



           20               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Thank you.



           21          Are there any additional announcements?



           22                     (No response.)



           23               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Hearing
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            1   none, is there any public comment at this time?



            2               MR. SCHULTZ:  This is Deputy Director



            3   Schultz.  I'm not aware of any public comment.



            4               CHAIRPERSON SLASH:  Okay.  Thank you.



            5          At this time, I thank you all for joining



            6   us on this lovely afternoon in May, but we will



            7   go ahead and adjourn our meeting.  It's 1:30 p.m.



            8   on May 21st, 2021.



            9                        -  -  -

                          Thereupon, the proceedings of

           10              May 21, 2021 were concluded

                               at 1:31 o'clock p.m.

           11                        -  -  -
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